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CHAIR GUZMAN:
(gavel)... Good afternoon. I’m Don Guzman, Welcome to the
Economic Development, Agriculture, Energy, and Recreation Committee. Before I
begin, I’d like to introduce our Members that we have today.
We have our
Vice-Chair Elle Cochran.
..

.

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Don Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning, Chair. Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Good afternoon. Stacy Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: And welcoming also in joining us, Gladys Baisa. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Absent or excused, Rild Hokama, as well as Mr. Victorino. Joining us later
will be Chair Mike White. Before we begin, Iii go ahead and check in with our District
Offices. In Hana Office, are you there?
MS. LONO: Yes, good afternoon, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. Lono, is there anyone wishing to testify?
MS. LONO: There’s no one waiting to testify.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, thank you. And on Lanai Office, are you there?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and there is
no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Ms. Fernandez. And on Molokai?
MS. ALCON: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Ms. Alcon.
wishing to testify?

Let’s go back to the Chambers.

Is there anyone

MS. BROOKS: The first testifier will be Clayton Fuchigami, followed by Alan Vares.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, before Mr. Fuchigami begins, Hi just remind everyone that you’ll
have three minutes to testify. Please state your name and/or organization in which
you represent and when you see the red button flashing, that’s the end of your
testimony so. You may begin. Thank you.

BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
MR. FUCHIGAMI: Good afternoon, EAR Chair Don Guzman and Councilmembers. My name
is Clayton Fuchigami and I am the President/CEO of Maui Federal Credit Union. We
are the owners of the Waiakoa Gym. I’m here to testify in support of the proposed
resolution entitled Authorizing the Acquisition of the Waiakoa Gym from the Maui
federal Credit Union. Maui FCU acquired the gym as a result of a merger with Kula
Community FCU on January 2, 2014 and our volunteer Board has wisely concluded
that we cannot viably operate a gym as a credit union facility or a branch as our
Federal regulator, NCUA, might expect us to. The County currently leases the gym
from us, which began as a lease with the Cameron Center on August 1, 1997. The
gym is frequented daily by the County of Maui Parks and Recreation programs
benefiting youth and adult sports leagues, organizations, public and private schools in
the Upcountry area and groups of individuals for pickup games. Recognizing the
recreational, historic and sentimental value of this structure, we concluded that we
would first make the gym available to the County for purchase so that it might remain
available to the Kula community and residents of Maui. We have personally reached
out to Mr. Elmer Carvalho, the former CEO of Kula Community FCU, some of his
Board and credit union members of Kula, some residents of Kula, and most
importantly, the Kula Community Association Board, who have written letters to the
Council on August 11, 2014 and December 4, 2014 and provided verbal testimony in
support on April 22, 2015 at the Pukalani Community Center, otherwise known as the
Mayor Hannibal Tavares Community Center. They have all expressed support in
having the County of Maui purchase the gym.
Finally, I would like to thank
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Councilwoman Gladys Baisa for her input and support on behalf of her Upcountry
constituents and residents of Maui. She has been a champion for the County to
acquire the gym from day one when we first proposed the idea. Thank you all for your
favorable consideration.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
none

Thank you very much.

Is there any questions for the testifier?

Seeing

MS. BROOKS: The next testifier will be Alan Vares, followed by Bobbie Patnode.
MR. VARES: Good afternoon, Chair and Members. I’m Alan Vares, resident of Kula, and
also was the former volunteer Chairman of the Kula Federal Community Credit Union.
I’m in favor of the purchase, for the gym and the property. It’s not only used by Kula,
get people far away as Lahaina that comes there and use it. It’s seven days a week,
the young, the older, and it’s seven days a week on average that people are there. How
I know, from Lahalna, ‘cause I would go there and talk to individuals that is at the
gym, when they sitting outside on the rock wall, and I ask them where they’re from.
So that’s why I’m saying they’re as far away as Lahaina. So it’s not only Kula or
Makawao, Pukalani, it’s Kahului and Maui as a whole actually. Thank you for your
time.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Members, any follow-up questions, comments? Thank you
very much for your testimony.
MS. BROOKS: The last testifier in the Chamber is Bobbie Patnode.
MS. PATNODE: Good afternoon, Chair, Council. My name is Bobbie Patnode and I’m
Vice-President of the Kula Community Association and I’m very happy to be here today
to make sure the Council knows the Kula community completely supports the
purchase of the gym. We’ve been trying to do this for a while now and it’s very
important for our kids. If they can’t go to this gym, they have to go I don’t know
where. And I went across the street this morning and looked at it when I was at
Morihara Store and I talked to my friend Agnes this morning and she said, that place
is hopping during basketball season and it’s really important for the community to
have the gym. So I really hope that you approve this purchase. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Members, any follow-up questions, comments? Seeing none,
thank you very much for your testimony.
MS. BROOKS: There are no more testifiers in the Chamber.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, thank you. Members, that being said, without objections, I’d like to
close public testimony.
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COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Public testimony is now closed.
END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, District Offices. Have a good afternoon.

EAR..1(5)

PRESENTATION
ON
MAUI
ELECTRIC
COMPANY’S
ROOFTOP
PHOTOVOLTAIC PROGRAMS AND SERVICES; AND CLEAN ENERGY GOALS

CHAIR GUZMAN: Members, going on to the first item on today’s agenda, EAR-1(5), the
Presentation of the Maui Electric Company’s Rooftop Photovoltaic Programs and
Services; and Clean Energy Goals. Pursuant to Rule 7(b) of the Rules of the Council,
the Committee intends to receive a presentation from MECO, Maui Electric Company,
on the company’s rooftop photovoltaic programs and services and clean energy goals.
The Committee may receive this presentation as noted and also discuss any other
related matters. No legislation action will be taken. Members, as we have heard at
previous meetings, there is an overwhelming interest in the community for information
regarding the solar energy, especially rooftop systems. In light of the public’s interest
and the recent PUC, Public Utilities Commission’s changes to its rules relating to PV,
we have invited the representatives from Maui Electric Company to share with us the
company’s rooftop photovoltaic programs and service as well as their clean energy
goals. Today, I’d like to introduce on the panel, Sharon Suzuki, the President of our
Maui, MECO, branch. There’s also Mat McNeff, Manager, Power Supply Department,
Ellen Nashiwa, Director of Planning, and Jamie Cook, the Director of Renewable
Energy Projects. So I would like to turn over the floor to Ms. Suzuki and thank you for
being here. You may go ahead and proceed.

BEGIN PRESENTATION...

MS. SUZUKI:
Okay.
Good afternoon, Chair Guzman and Members of the ERA [sic]
Committee. Thank you very much for having us here today. And, as the Chair
mentioned, we wanted to give you an update on the changes that were made to the
rooftop solar program and the services that we offer. We also wanted to give you an
update on what we’re doing to meet the short-term needs, energy needs of Maui
County, as well as how we’re planning for the future energy needs to meet our
customers’ demand.
So, as I just mentioned, these are the topics that well be
covering. So the first topic will be covered by Jamie Cook, our Director of Renewable
Energy Projects. The short-term needs will be discussed by Mat McNeff, our Manager
of Power Supply. And our long-range planning plans will be covered by Ellen Nashiwa.
So with that, so we have prepared a formal presentation and after the presentation’s
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over, we’ll open it up to questions and well address them at that time. At this time, Ill
turn it over to Jamie.
MR. COOK: Great. Thank you, Sharon. Aloha. Ill be talking about the customer programs
and services Maui Electric provides for our customers interested in solar and PV
systems. Hawaii leads the nation for the percentage of customers with installed PV
systems. Maui Electric has continually been ranked in the Top 10 by the Solar
Electric Power Association. Maui Electric is 13 percent versus the U.S. Mainland at
.6 percent of customers with installed PV systems. This chart shows the rapid growth
in PV installations in Maui County over the last 5 years. The red bars indicate the
cumulative amount of customers with PV and we have over 9,000 customers
interconnected. We interconnected over 2,000 customers in 2015 and this growth is
projected to continue in 2016. Net Energy Metering started in 2001. Fifteen years
later, PV has grown with the help of tax credits and an increase in solar contractors
and technology price reductions. Existing NEM customers remain active in the Net
Energy Metering program and Net Energy Metering or NEM is transferrable by real
estate sales and account changes. Our responsibility moving forward is to ensure that
interconnected customers pay their fair share for maintaining the grid while creating a
sustainable environment for PV growth. Our two new programs are Customer Grid
Supply and Customer Self Supply. Customer Grid Supply is the nearest equivalent to
the Net Energy Metering program where customers receive a fixed energy credit rate
for excess energy they send to the utility and customers in this program are charged
the retail rate for energy received from the utility. The Customer Self Supply program,
there is no credit for export to the grid, customer uses all the generation on site and
there is a faster approval process for the under 10kW systems. And this will assist
customers on highly integrated circuits. And this is a quick comparison of the
different programs. Net Energy Metering, people were credited for their excess energy
to the grid and the energy credit rate was at the retail, the minimum monthly bill was
$18. With Customer Grid Supply, there is the same credit for the excess energy sent
to the grid, except it’s a fixed energy credit rate and there is a modest increase in the
monthly minimum charge. And for Customer Self Supply, there is no excess energy
sent to the grid and there is no credit for the energy and the monthly minimum bill is
$25. One of the greatest resources that we have for customers interested in PV is our
We have dedicated personnel and communication
new Maui Electric website.
channels for customers inquiring about PV interconnection. In this portal, customers
can find information about selecting contractors and the overall application process.
On our website, we have locational value maps and each of these colored areas
indicate different circuits on the island and, depending on the color of the shaded
area, it shows how much PV has been integrated in those specific areas. So this is
how customers can view how much solar is on the electric grid in their neighborhood.
In addition, linked to those maps, we have a street lookup system where you can plug
in the street name that you’re looking for and you can also find the various levels of PV
integration in that area. It’s important to note that specific streets can also have
multiple circuits and this is indicated on this chart here. Over the last five years,
interconnection applications were largely driven by the solar industry responding to
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customer demand. This resulted in many PV systems being oversized. Maui Electric’s
new online WattPlan tool empowers customers to get an objective size estimate for
their solar system needs and this new tool is calibrated for the new Customer Grid
Supply program. And also on our website, we have a very great visual resource to
learn about the daily integration of renewable energy on the grid for all three islands
and this is a screenshot of our Renewable Watch for Maui. And you can see how the
wind and solar resources are integrated on a daily level and also you can compare it
from the previous day’s metrics. And now I’m gonna hand it over to Mat McNeff, who’s
gonna talk about Maui County’s current energy needs.
MR. McNEFF: Thanks, Jamie. As Jamie mentioned, I’m going to be talking about meeting
Maui County’s energy needs in the short term and then after me, Ellen will be talking
more about the long-term needs. So the current population of Maui County is
approximately 144,000 and that is forecasted to increase to close to 195,000 by the
year 2030. So, similarly, Maui Electric makes projections on how much energy the
County is going to need going out into the future, The graph at the bottom depicts
that forecast. The dark line right at 2015, prior to that is the actuals and to the right
of it is the forecast. You can see that each of our sectors use approximately one-third
of the energy for Maui County, the sectors being residential, small business and large
business. Although they each use about one-third of the energy, the number of
customers is significantly different in each one of those sectors. For residential, we
have approximately 60,000 customers. Compare that to large business, which has
just over 100 accounts. So annually Maui Electric looks at our forecast for energy
going forward and we take into account different things like lifestyle changes, you
know, more and more people are relying on their devices, their technological needs for
every day. You know, the visitor industry is constantly changing with world events,
new restaurants and retail businesses open up, local manufacturing, all these things,
we reevaluate every year and take into account any changes into our forecast going
forward into the future. And, you know, all of these things continue to create a need
for reliable energy for Maui County. So the same thing is, happens on the power
generation side, you know, we have to look at all the different things that change from
year to year. Shown on the slide is a few of the recent changes. You know, HC&S
recenfly announced changes in operations and associated with that, you know, the
early termination of our Purchase Power Agreement with them. We have, you know,
higher usage by existing customers. We have customer programs where we incentivize
customers to change their usage during peak periods. The Kahului Power Plant is
scheduled to be retired in the year 2022. So all these things go together into our
forecast and what it’s telling us is that there is a need for additional resources starting
in 2017. So for the short term, there’s several options that we’re evaluating. We’re
evaluating additional firm distributed generation. Again, looking at further customer
incentive programs, you know, these are sometimes called demand response where we
incentivize customers not to use electricity during certain periods. We’re looking at
repurposing our existing assets. For example, one of them is our battery at our Wailea
Substation. That was previously installed in the Smart Grid project with the Hawaii
Energy Natural... Hawaii Natural Energy Institute. Currently we use that to help meet
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the needs of the circuit during the peak time. And we’re looking at further optimizing
that towards our generation needs going forward. And then we’re also looking at
installing additional batteries. So those are some of the things that we’re looking at to
meet our short-term needs. I’m going to hand it over to Ellen and she’s going to talk
more about our planning process going forward.
MS. NASHIWA: Okay, thank you, Mat. So as Mat mentioned, I’ll be talking about long-range
resource planning. So turning to that, it’s one of our standard processes that we have
in place to ensure that we have sufficient available, reliable energy generation to meet
the County’s needs. Our current Clean Energy Plan Objectives include affordable
customer bills, increasing the integration of clean energy, creating more customer
choices while ensuring reliable, continued reliable service. In 2014, our Clean Energy
Plans, or technically referred to as Power Supply Improvement Plans, achieved
72 percent of our renewable energy goal through a progressive mix of different
resources. In 2016, we’re looking to update these plans to cover a longer time period,
up to 2045, and incorporate some of the changes that have occurred since 2014, when
we filed our original plan. Today, actually today, we’ll be filing a progress report of our
analysis thus far to, and then over the next six weeks developing a preferred plan and
five-year action plan in order to reach the goals mentioned before. The analysis that
we’ll be conducting over the next, continuing to conduct over the next six weeks,
incorporates different resources that are currently available. So in addition to solar
and wind, we’ll also be considering or looking at these various resources as options in
our plan, so biomass, biofuel, geothermal, waste to energy, as wells as storage, storage
options. The plans will also look to integrate renewable energy to reach 100 percent
Renewable Portfolio Standards, which is a recent change to our laws, as well as still
maintaining system security and reliability at the lowest reasonable cost. But the
plans that will be filed in April is not the end of the energy discussion, it’s not set in
stone, it will be revisited, and we will be reevaluating these plans along the way, out to
2045, as things change and the environment changes and requires us to relook at our
plans that we’ll look, we’ll consider, that consider safe, reliable, affordable and
sustainable energy plan going forward for the future. And now I’ll turn it back over to
Sharon.
MS. SUZUKI: Okay, so as you heard, we certainly continually evaluate the environment in
which we’re operating and as you know, there are many changes. Of course, as Mat
mentioned, the announcement by HC&S to change their, I guess, objectives of working
more with diversified agriculture and getting out of sugar was pretty major. We had,
we’ve been working with them both on the energy front as well as making sure they
knew about the different employment opportunities that are available at Maui Electric.
We are proud to say that we’ve been serving this Maui community for 95 years this
year, marks our 95th anniversary and we certainly plan to continue to do so going into
the future. Our goal, of course, is to achieve the goal of 100 percent renewable energy
by the year 2045, but, of course, we’re cognizant of the concerns of your constituents
and our customers in terms of making sure that that energy is at an affordable price
and that we’re there when our customers want us. So with that, it concludes our
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formal presentation. We’re certainly open to, you know, addressing any questions that
you may have for us.
END PRESENTATION...

CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you very much, Ms. Suzuki. Thank you very much, panelists. I’m
going to open up the floor for any questions pertaining to the presentation or other
related matters. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you folks for being here.
There’s a couple things that I had some questions on your presentation and one that
kinda may have been in the presentation or implied. First of all, on the Customer Grid
Supply, that’s almost the same as net metering except for the rate is fixed, Do you
know what that fixed rate is?
MR. COOK: Yes, it’s 17 cents a kilowatt hour for Maui.
COUNCILMEPVIBER COUCH: So that’s not the retail rate then?
MR. COOK: No, it’s a fixed rate for two years and it’ll be reevaluated by the PUC in two years’
time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So the PUC sets that rate at your

--

MR. COOK: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --you guys’

--

MR. COOK: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --suggestion, yeah? Then you also mentioned on Customer
Self Supply that energy storage is not required.
MR. COOK: That’s correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But they can have energy storage?
MR. COOK: Absolutely, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Because you’re not going to give ‘em credit if they
export? Are they allowed to even export back to the grid?
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MR. COOK: This is designed for customers to generally use all of the generation on site. So
if there is some inadvertent export to the grid, it’s okay but it’s designed for customers
to use all of their energy.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So these customers, I’m not, I don’t quite get it, why would they
do Self Supply and not just be off the grid or is that a situation where the Self Supply
is there until something happens and they don’t have any and they use, would use
your services?
MR. COOK: Correct. It’s designed for customers that want to participate with renewable
energy technologies and also stay interconnected to the grid
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Got you.
MR. COOK: --so for that reliability.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And lastly, you know, for those of us who can’t have
solar because we’re in multi-family or pretty much can’t have solar and those that just
don’t have solar at the time, there’s this PPA charge that I see on our bill. Is that, with
the new increase in the fixed rate or the flat charge, I guess, is that going to alleviate
that charge? Because I, quite frankly, don’t feel like paying for somebody else’s solar.
MR. COOK: There are charges on our bills that help integrate renewable energy for
everybody in the customer base. There’s also plans for community-based solar so
customers in the future will be able to participate in multi-family units and things like
that. They’ll be able to invest in off-site solar systems and get the appropriate credit.
So when those, as those programs mature, there’ll be a lot more people in our
customer base thatli be able to participate in renewable energy technologies.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. McNEFf: I believe the PPA charge is related to the energy that we purchase from our
existing Purchase Power Agreement, such as the wind farms. So at least at this point,
I don’t think there’s, it’s not related to distributed solar.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, so it’s, but still from the wind farm, it’s odd that we would
have to pay a charge that somebody else is generating the power for you. I just have
that concern on that charge. It’s not a lot so I don’t want to waste a lot of time on that
but it’s just kinda interesting that there’s a PPA charge.
MR. McNEfF: It’s just for the energy that we purchase from them and then everyone, you
know, a portion of that energy that use, comes from them, it’s passed through right to
the customer. And in general, you know, those PPAs help to lower charges on the
island.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
Thank you.

Okay, that’s, I’m a little confused with that but that’s airight.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Can you further explain, the panelists, to help Mr. Couch understand,
maybe more simplistic terms or expand on it?
MR. McNEFF: Yeah, so instead of us, I mean, creating the energy ourselves, off fossil fuel,
you know, we purchase some of that through purchase power agreements. In general,
prior to entering into a purchase power agreement, we do an assessment and one of
the, you know, pretty much like the main thing we check is to make sure that that’s
going to be lower than if we had purchased or created the energy ourselves. So if you
didn’t have a PPA charge, your bill would most likely be higher and the cost would just
be, as opposed to be in a PPA charge, through higher kilowatt hour purchase.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s sounds like the funny math we do at Budget time. I’m
not quite sure how that works. If you get the charge then your bill will be lower but,
like I said, it’s not a whole lot so it’s just kinda discerning to see that on the thing
because the people who have solar don’t have that charge as far as I could tell. I’ve
seen their bills and it’s 1$ bucks so that’s where the concern is. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Is there any other questions? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair, and thank you for the presentation. I was
told that the recent PUC decision--this isn’t something you guys necessarily have a lot
of input on--but the recent PUC decision regarding this subject limited the expansion
of Maui’s photovoltaic systems to another five megawatts. Is that correct?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That’s correct.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And what is that make up of the total that we have now or how
does that compare to what the total is now?
MR. COOK: We currently have 72 megawatts of distributed generation on the net, on the
grid, and that cap is going to be reevaluated again by the PUC in Phase II of this DER
proceeding. So it’s, we just put a tool on the website to be a, have transparency on
how much of that is going to be left as customers interconnect. And I think it’s
important to note that that’s say sort of a Phase I cap on that and so that we
anticipate that PUC will, you know, raise or change that level in the future.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And when is Phase II going to take place?
MR. COOK: It’s ongoing.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So when is it likely that that cap will be readdressed?
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MR COOK: That’s a good question. The current rates for the Customer Grid Supply
program will be reevaluated by the PUC. Based on our current forecast, it should take
up to two years to take up that five megawatts so it looks like for the short term we
have enough capacity for customer demand. So it’s uncertain as to when that will
actually officially be announced by the PUC.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: There was a concern that that was, that the five megawatts was
a small enough number that that may result in layoffs in some of our solar companies.
How many megawatts are currently in the pipeline for approval?
MR. COOK: Currently, we have about half a megawatt for Customer Grid Supply, for people
that have applied
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
MR. COOK: --since the changeover.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:
processed?
MR. COOK:
more.

And what’s the timeframe within which they normally get

Customers can expect preapprovals in approximately 30 business days, no

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. That’s new.
MR. COOK: And we’re looking to shorten that timeframe.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. So
MR. COOK: Those are the maximum, that’s the maximum time that we would have per the
PUC to get a preapproval out.
Now you mentioned that we have 70.. .that you have
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:
72 megawatts now. When I went on, when I looked up on your website, yesterday was
showing that we had 53.3 megawatts of PV and 72 megawatts of wind. I think they
were numbers that were in a 2015 report so it looks like they were as of the end of
2014. So are you suggesting that in the last, well, since the end of 2014, we’ve gone
from 53 to 72?
MR. COOK: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:
going to last?

Okay.

Alrighty.

So how long do you think that five megs is

MR. COOK: Hopefully for the next two years.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, if you’ve just gone through, what is that, 19 megawatts in
15 months, that 5 is not going to last more than 6 months. And what is the 93,000,
or 9,319, is that
MR. COOK: That’s the total cumulative interconnected customers, 9,319. That’s a customer
count.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Out of the total of 70 or so, 70,000?
MR. COOK: Correct, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
MR. COOK: So approximately 13 percent of Maui County.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And in the PUC discussions, I was told that the, there was, and
it may have been in a newspaper article, that the head of the PUC suggested that they
didn’t wanted to favor one type of renewable energy over another. Do you recall
anything of that sort suggesting that there needed to be a balance between wind and
solar or anything of that sort?
MR. COOK: Not to my knowledge. PV is our predominant technology, especially at the
customer level because of its, the price reductions keep going, you know, keep going
down. Micro wind, you know, there’s a lot of moving parts so customers, typically the,
you know, the payback isn’t there. So the predominant technology in our area is PV.
So I think that’s, you know, the popularity is, it’s driven by the ease of the technology
implementation and customer demand. So I think that market forces, sort of dictate,
you know, the technology at the customer level, and at the utility level we’re looking at
everything that’s economically viable, economically and technologically viable going
forward.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, the person that brought it to my attention was concerned
that the comment led them to feel that they were, that the PUC was favoring protecting
access to the grid for wind at the expense of PV but you’ve not heard anything of that
sort?
MR. COOK: Not to our knowledge, no.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Because, obviously, wind favors folks that are extremely
well off, big corporations and so forth, and if this 5,000 megawatts doesn’t last very
long, then we’re, I think we’re being held to a lesser degree of expansion than Oahu
‘cause right now we’re at, if we’re at 72, Oahu is at 272 when we were at 53 and I’m
assuming that they’re continuing to grow as well, So is the $5,000 or 5,000 megawatt
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cap something that you all had any input in? Were you asked to provide what you felt
you could handle or was this something that just came from the PUC, unaided?
MR. COOK: I think it developed as a collaboration between the two entities. But getting
back to your earlier points, I think it’s important to note that there’s a big difference
between the utility level integration of wind and the customer-sided distributed
generation. You know they’re two related but separate disciplines as far as integrating
those resources. So you have all these, you know, these smaller systems all over the
territory. We have to make sure that we aggregate and integrate them
--

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
MR. COOK: --in a particular manner. Whereas, you have a big wind farm and Mat can
speak to the integration of utility-scale wind resources probably better than I can with
However, there is a distinct difference between those two
his vast experience.
methodologies. So I think that we’re not really favoring one or the other and that
they’re, we’re being very conservative yet allowing for that sustainable growth of
distributed generation, you know, with these caps. And we fully anticipate them to be
changed and altered in the future to allow for more.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Chair. Thank you very much.
MR. COOK: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Is there any other questions? Ms. Cochran? Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. Oh, go ahead.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, Ms. Cochran

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --and then followed by Ms. Crivello.

And thank you for your straight, to the point, PowerPoint
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN:
presentation. And I just wanted to get a little more elaboration on the, your slides
aren’t numbered, but it’s, our future clean energy plans--oh, they’re at the
top--creating more customer choices. So I was just, if there’s any elaboration that can
be made on that subject about creating more customer choices, what does that
mean
--
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MS. NASHIWA: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --exactly?
MS. NASHIWA: So where we see the customers being able to participate in serving the
island’s needs are providing them more information. So through our smart metering
efforts, we’d be able to provide customers more information about their usage and they
can make their own choices about how to either reduce their bill or use energy the way
they want to. They can participate, and we expect to have available time-of-use rates,
different types of other customer incentive programs that will, that they can change
their usage to match and to lower their bills and have more choices available to them
in managing their bill instead of just buying kilowatt hours at a set rate.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: I think, did someone mention something, I don’t know, but like a
community-based, I don’t know, not a co-op but
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Community-based solar.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah, is that, so would that be an option given out to that, to the
people, to say, hey, if you all band together to do that? Is there.. .what would that
entail?
MR. COOK: Yes, so community-based solar is essentially where you have people, I’ll use an
example of an apartment complex where, or a condo complex, where people aren’t able
to directly control the roof space that’s right above their units ‘cause you’ve got
multiple units. So they’ll be able to invest individually in say an offsite solar facility so
their individual investment will dictate the credits that they get on their bill. So this
is, you know, something that’s also happening nationally, and developing nationally,
there’s a very big interest in this movement going forward because a lot of people have
felt like they’ve been, you know, left out of the action because of where they live. So
these models are starting to develop now, which we, you know, anticipate will put a lot
of smiles on people’s faces going forward.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay, yeah, very good. And then in regards to batteries, I live off
the grid and I need my battery source that powers right now as daylight’s striking the
panels and then at night I can flip the switch and turn on the TV because all day long
my battery’s been powered. And I see, how has this storage in Wailea been working so
far? I know it’s always been, technology isn’t quite there yet, we’re not sure if we really
want to invest, but I’m hearing more so, yes, you folks would like to head in that
direction. So do we have, you know, comments on the existing battery source you do
have and how you want to move in the future?
MR. McNEFF: Yeah, so as far as I know, the Wailea battery is working out fine. We haven’t
had any operational issues with it and, in fact, you know, we are planning to use that
continually going into the future. You know, one of the things with batteries is always
-15-

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENERGY, AGRICULTURE,
AND RECREATION COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
February 16, 2016

been the cost, you know, so we try, you know, we definitely anticipate using them
more in the future but, you know, hopefully a little later when the cost start to go
down more.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay, well, very good, glad you folks still have it on the, you know,
the menu to look at. And, yeah, that’s all I have for now, Chair, thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you for being here and thank you for
your presentation. I’m gonna kinda focus, not just Maui centric, but Molokai also
because that’s all of Maui County but I don’t see anything here that addresses that.
But there’s talk, and Ill say talk because that’s about all what I get, in the.. .a possible
community-based solar farm by a private entity on our island. How would that.. .I’m
sure you’re familiar with the, it used to be Princeton and now it’s another name and
another name but it basically starts from the so-called solar farm, how does that
Is that somewhat the same like your
benefit a community like ours?
community-based provision of a solar farm and how do the Molokth residents benefit
to that sort of concept?
MR. McNEfF: Well, yeah, well, one of the main things we always look for prior to entering
into a purchase power agreement is that customers will benefit in the long run, you
know, mainly that it’ll be cheaper than had we purchased or had we created the
energy ourselves. So that’s one of the, sort of the gates even to have a purchase power
agreement with us. And then another benefit of a potential purchase power agreement
with a renewable facility like that is just getting off of fossil fuels, which we haven’t
entered into any agreement yet with any developer so, you know, I can’t say with, you
know, the specifics of anything like that. But, generally, those would be the benefits
that we’d be looking forward for the customers.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Also too, if I may, this, our earlier committee meeting, we
had couple developers talk about requesting or support for PV, for units, perhaps
development in West Maui as well as couple, we’re not sure where yet, but, and
rehabbing some of the older homes to PV. Is there, will there be difficulties? I think
some of the questions we asked the developers were have they put in their request and
would that be a challenge to receive the go ahead to have these units?
MR. COOK: So you’re asking if
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: If the developers will encounter challenges to put in the PVs
on their affordable housing units or whatever proposals they have before us. There’s
33 units in West Maui that’s requesting possibility of installing PV. There’s about
5 units scattered throughout Maui for the ARC program and these are houses that will
be rehabbed and the intent is also to install PVs. So will it be a challenge for them to
have their PV installed, getting the necessary permits from MECO?
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MR. COOK: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
MR. COOK: They can apply to Customer Grid Supply just like any customer can.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And it won’t be a problem like how we have on Molokai?
MR. COOK: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
MR. COOK: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Because back home, we, it all depends where you live, if you
can have PV.
MR. COOK: Sure. Well, what we do is, when customer apply for energy programs, we
analyze where they’re trying to interconnect and we look at the level of PV integration
on that particular circuit and depending on the results of that analysis, that’s what
dictates whether or not someone’s able to readily interconnect. And even when they’re
not readily able to interconnect, we continue to work toward finding a solution for
them to interconnect. And over the years, especially the last five years, all of our, our
analysis changes as time goes on and we’re constantly analyzing and integrating more
and more renewables every single year. So the quick and easy answer is, no, they
shouldn’t have any challenges; however, we do analyze each and every situation to
make sure that those customers are interconnecting to the grid safely. Does that
help?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes, it does. I appreciate it. May I ask another question?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So when we talk about batteries and storage, can you kinda
elaborate that further for grids such as Molokai? Why would that be of a value for us
to have battery storage? Which we don’t have, but there is talk about, was again it’s a
lot of talks, but it’s not from MECO per se, but from, I think, the Hawaii Energy
Institute and together with the University of Hawaii. And so, my question is, how does
the battery storage, is advantageous for rural communities or that the grid is not most
up-to-date to be of service to the consumer?
MR. McNEFF: Sure, so, you know, batteries can be used in a variety of ways and one of the
ways that has proved to be the most beneficial currently is to have the battery ready to
respond to some disturbance or a change in demand, and if having that battery there
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allows us to lower our generation or possibly turn off a unit, that generally makes
more room for renewables such as solar. So Molokai does have a battery scheduled to
be installed next month, actually.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, it’s going to happen?
MR. McNEFF: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, okay.
MR. McNEFf: So.

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I didn’t know.
MR. McNEfP: And the plan is to, you know, use the battery for that purpose and, you know,
experiment exactly how much of a difference that makes and what kind of operational
changes it allows us to make on our side.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. 3aisa, did you have any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No. They answered the things we were talking about this
morning, which is great. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Speaking of the batteries, you showed
the Wailea battery and Ms. Cochran talked a little bit about it. How does that get
charged? Is that being charged by wind power, by a specific, you know, Sempra or
Kaheawa or is it solar? How is it being charged and then how is it being used?
MR. McNEFf: So, in general, I mean, it charges from the grid. There’s not really too much of
a distinction of exactly where that energy came from. We use it to help meet the needs
of the circuit during the peak time. So, and generally that means it’s probably
discharging during the highest peak, maybe between 5:00 and 9:00, and charging
during other times of the day. If there is renewable energy available at that, at those
times, it is increasing the load and allowing more of that renewable energy to come
onto the grid, if there wasn’t enough load otherwise. So, just generally speaking, it’s
adding load and if that makes more room for us to accept more renewable wind or,
yeah, solar, then yes, it’s being charged with that type of energy and it’s being used to
help meet the peak on the circuit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And you say it’s working out well but the cost is still
kind of prohibitive to load up the island with batteries?
-
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MR. McNEFf: Yeah, just in general. Generally speaking, you know, batteries are still
expensive and, but we do think that in the future, you know, similar to how solar
evolved, that prices will be decreasing and that’s sort of, you know, factors into our
strategy of wanting to use this resource but not wanting to use it too early.
COUNCILMEM3ER COUCH: And then, I seem to recall a couple story, or a story or two,
about two entities making big solar arrays that you guys had a deal with or is that still
in the works or?
MR. McNEfF: We have two purchase power agreements for solar facilities, one in Lahaina
and one in Kihei side. They are currently before the Public Utilities Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, and these are non, they don’t exist right now?
MR. McNEFf: The facilities don’t exist.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And those were the 11 cents an hour, kilowatt hours, is
that what the rate was? That was the big news is that, hey you got it
--

MR. McNEFf: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --for 11 cents

--

MR. McNEFF: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --an hour.
MR. McNEff: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Wow, that’s very interesting. That ties in a little bit to, I
know you put it up on your, one of your slides there about waste to energy and we
don’t know if we have the, so far, non-existent Anaergia but it’s my understanding
they’re having concern. When they were talking about how much it’s gonna, they’re
gonna be able to generate and make and how much it was going to cost everything
‘cause that’s when the power was up at 30 cents, or whatever, a kilowatt hour, and
now that you have couple solars down at 11, is that affecting those kind of talks?
Because if you can get solar for 11, yeah I know it’s not firm, just it’s, there’s a whole
mix of things that are going on that we’re trying to see if we can get firm power cheap
and I know the waste to energy is not going to be cheap. Geothermal might be cheap
but that’s still out there too, that, I don’t know if they\ie started their wells yet or not.
Any thoughts on that?
MR. McNEFF: I don’t know if the solar facility is, you know, directly competing with any
waste-to-energy facility, That being said, you know, I mean, as prices come down, as
-
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we purchase more and more cheap energy, you know, it does present a challenge to
other resources that may be, you know, more expensive. That being said, you know,
Varying resources have different
they don’t all have to be the same price.
characteristics that may suit certain needs for the grid.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, and one last?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That brought up another. You know, with the price of oil being
so low now and it’s, I’m assuming it’s cheaper than any of the renewables we have,
except for maybe the photovoltalc. How does that, how are you guys, I mean, you’re
responsible for providing us power with the cheapest, at the cheapest price, right? So
if oil is significantly cheaper than wind or solar, what are your requirements
on... ‘cause we’re trying to get away from oil, right, but it may be the cheapest,
especially now with, I think it’s around $28 a barrel or something like that. How does
that mix in with your equations?
MS. SUZUKI: So, actually, I think what Ellen shared was what we’re in the process of doing,
which is updating our long-range plan. So we do have to forecast out what we expect
fuel prices to be into the future and it’s finding that balance of getting to our
100 percent renewable goal in 2045 while still keeping cost, you know, keeping energy
affordable for our customers and maintaining reliability of the system. So we can’t
just operate on variable renewable energy like wind and solar, which is very abundant,
and we can see that developers can produce it at a relatively low cost; however, it’s not
always there, right? So we’re looking at balancing that type of resource with storage
and, like Mat said, when it becomes hopefully more cost effective and, like PV, right,
the technology has improved. So it’s through this process, this Long-Range Power
Supply Improvement Plan preparation process that we’ll look at different scenarios,
looking to address our waste-to-energy question, right, is to see if, based on the
information that we have looking forward, the demand from our customers, the pricing
of, you know, fuel and the different prices of the renewable resources, what is the best
mix for Maui County, so looking at the three separate islands, Maui, Lanai and
Molokal. So that’s what well be working on in the next six weeks and we did some
work already trying to gather different assumptions, we are filing a update, like a
progress report later today. So we’ll share that information that we have with you
when we get that.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Do you have any more questions, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, yeah, but let
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, Mr. White?

-
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I’m still a little bit concerned about the cap, the impact that it’s
going to have. The reason for my concern is that the, if I go back on your chart, to
2011. From 2011 until now, we’ve, in a 4-year period, we’ve generated or we’ve had
come onto the system, 50 kilowatts of PV generation. That’s about 12’/2 kilowatts per
year and the cap, if you say the cap is expected to last 2 years, then that means that
the cap is going to allow 2.5 instead of 12V2 per year. So can you help us understand
how the cap was arrived at and to what degree are you comfortable that it’s not going
to have an impact on people’s ability to keep moving towards their own renewable
energy setups and the impact it may have on the solar providers?
MR. COOK: Yeah, I can help with that. Actually I was just writing down some notes ‘cause I
could see your gears turning, It’s important to note that this really rapid, I dare say,
explosive growth in NEM, was related to a couple of things. Number one, the NEM
program was very, it was a very juicy target for the industry and it actually spawned a
lot of these sort of third-party add-on sort of agreements, where you’ve got companies
like Sunrun, they have these lease agreements. And you had high customer demand
coupled with declining PV prices and this emerging and really aggressive industry and
highly unregulated industry, and what we will see, per the chart, we’ll see that same, if
not increased “growth” based on a year to 1.5 years of sort of built up NEM
preapprovals that are already out there. So we’ve, we give people up to 18 months to
put in their PV systems and we were giving NEM preapprovals right up until, actually,
after, once the D&O came out on October 12, 2015, there was a post-mark date. So
as soon as we got those applications and we got them post-marked and we entered
them into the system, we were issuing preapproval, NEM preapprovals, right up until
the end of the year.
So there’s going to be this continued installation and
interconnection of NEM systems well into 2016 and 2017. So those numbers indicate
the amount of interconnected systems so that growth will still continue. So we’ll see
the tail end of the NEM interconnections in the next year and a half. With this new
program, the economics are different and it’s definitely going to hurt those third-party
providers. It’s going to actually change the industry. And you might be aware of that
there’s litigation against the PUC by those industry players. So we’ve seen a slight
slowdown based on the transition to the new programs. We anticipate sort of a
leveling off with these new programs in a sense that, especially related to that
WattPlan that we showed on the internet, that these, the new program will help
customers right-size their systems and we saw with NEM a vast, there was a good
Some people
significant portion of those NEM systems that were oversized.
legitimately planning for electric cars, which is good. A lot of people in concert with
their installers go ahead in overlaying PV without even doing energy efficiency or
energy reduction measures.
So we saw this real industry push and with this
calibration with the new programs, we definitely see things leveling off. So we
anticipate that based on this new paradigm, that five megawatt cap is specific to
Customer Grid Supply. However, you’ll continue to see those existing preapprovals
continue to come in. Does that help?

-
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. Do you have a sense of how many megawatts you have in
what has been approved and not yet constructed?
MR. COOK: For net energy metering?
COUNCILMEM3ER WHITE: For, yeah, for, well

--

MR. COOK: For the existing programs.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --whatever, for net energy metering because that’s what would
become the, the other one, the Customer, the Grid
MR. COOK: Customer Grid Supply.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
MR. COOK: Correct. We currently have, I believe, around three megawatts of outstanding
preapproved NEM systems that need to go in. So the five megawatt is specific to
Customer Grid Supply.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, so it’s
MR. COOK: So it’s program

--

--

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --the five is on

--

MR. COOK: --specific.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --top of the, the three

--

MR. COOK: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --is not included in the five?
MR. COOK: No.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And if it’s, and the five does not have anything to do with
customer interconnect, where there’s no, nothing being fed back to the system?
MR. COOK: Correct. So it does not pertain to the Customer Self Supply.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, thank you.
MR. COOK: Sure.

-
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Mr. White. Any other questions before.. .Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think one last one and it’s, it might be a big one. How does
all this fit into the pending potential purchase by NextEra?
MS. SUZUKI: I would say that it’s part of what they support. In our planning, we definitely
know that we, there’ll be a need for investments in grid modernization, so modernizing
the transmission and distribution systems as well as modernizing generation or being
able to purchase, you know, additional renewable resources or infrastructure like
storage. So I see that as a benefit to having someone like NextEra, who has access to
lower cost capital, coming into the picture. So they do support the plans that, well, we
had in 2014, and recognizing that there is this now push, of course, to achieve
100 percent renewable goal, it fits in what their company is all about, you know, in
terms of clean energy and making investments in the utility.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: You’re welcome. Any further questions? Seeing none, I’d like to thank the
panelists today, as well as Ms. Suzuki, for coming and giving our presentation and
update on MECO’s renewable photovoltaic programs. At this time, I’m going to,
without objections, Members, I’d like to defer this matter.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION: Deferred.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Thank you, panelists, for being here.
Okay, thank you, Chair Guzman and Councilmembers.

MS. SUZUKI:
time.

Members, let’s, wanna take a brief recess, let’s make it five minutes,

CHAIR GUZMAN:

recess.

.

.

.

(gavel).

.

RECESS:

2:49 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:03 p.m.

CHAIR GUZMAN:

We appreciate your

...

(gavel)... The EAR Committee shall now reconvene.
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EAR-5 1

AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF THE WAIAKOA GYM FROM THE MAUI
FEDERAL CREDIT UNION (CC 16-22)

CHAIR GUZMAN:
Members, we11 turn to the next item on today’s agenda, EAR-51,
Authorizing the Acquisition of the Waiakoa Gym from the Maui Federal Credit Union.
The Committee is in receipt of County Communication 16—22, from the Director of
Parks and Recreation, transmitting the proposed resolution entitled Authorizing the
Acquisition of Waiakoa Gym from the Maui Federal Credit Union. The purpose of the
proposed resolution is to authorize the purchase from Maui Federal Credit Union,
identified as Tax Map Key (2) 22014-021, located at 4600 Lower Kula Road, Kula,
Maui, Hawaii for 1.2 million. Section 3.44.015 requires the authorization of the
Council for the purchase of any real property with a purchase price that exceeds
100,000. So, Members, I’ve brought this item forward at the request of the Director of
Parks and Recreation. Many of us are familiar with this gym, it’s, I believe it was
constructed in the 1940s. The Director is here, present on the floor. And why don’t
we go ahead and open up the floor with Mr. Buenconsejo.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, thank you, Chair, Councilmembers. As discussed and testified
with the, you know, I know it as Kula Gym, the Waiakoa Gym, the Department is in
support of that gym, as you’re all aware of. That is the only one in that area, and with
the weather they do have, you know, having an enclosed gym for a basketball court, as
well as volleyball and other activities, the Department, you know, is in favor of that
purchase. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. So, Members, this, I believe the budget, during Budget we did
appropriate the monies. And so as part of the vehicle and the process of purchasing
this property, we have to approve the purchase and accept the conditions on the
purchase. So that’s why we’re here today via resolution. So you have any questions,
the floor is open. I’m going to call Mr. Sandy Baz to the floor as well. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEM3ER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I’m noticing in the, I guess, preliminary
report, Schedule A talks about stuff in Schedule B, that it talks about an unrecorded
lease to us. Why would we need to have that mentioned since we’re buying the place?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s one. That’s a fairly manini question. But the other one
is, what is the restriction of abutter’s rights of vehicle access?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Mr. Ueoka, are you... are here, his response?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, when the music stops, whoever is standing up
CHAIR GUZMAN: So we have two deputy Corp. Counsel’s here.
-
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MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I reviewed this one. It’s just listing all the stuff on the
property, even though we’re buying it, they list it anyway. That’s their job as a title
company. The restriction on rights of vehicle access, I believe it’s, there’s just, it’s just
that vehicle access, there, someone else has, essentially, a right to access.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you know who that is or is that the glass blowers next door
or?
MR. UEOKA: I have no idea. It says
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
refers to.

‘Cause we don’t, I don’t think we have the document that it

MR. UEOKA: We don’t have the actual warranty deed that it’s recorded in but I don’t think
it’s a, I remember when we discussed it, it’s nothing major. It’s been there as long as
we’ve owned the gym and it’s never been a problem. Or, I’m sorry
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: As long as we’ve leased the gym.
MR. UEOKA: as long as we’ve leased the gym, and it’s never been a problem. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Any further questions? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. You know, based on purchase price, I don’t really
think it’s too much of an issue but was there an inspection of the property done to
establish whether or not we have significant or insignificant repairs down the road?
Chair?
As far as a true property inspection, from the Parks
MR. BUENCONSEJO:
Department, we haven’t done that part. It was probably part of the appraisal process.
3ut, again, the gym is fairly weathered, I would say, so we do know that there are
some
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:
well.

But there are those of us in this room who fit that category as

MR. BUENCONSEJO: So we do have some monies in the fiscal Year ‘17 Budget to get a little
thing of what’s going on as far as assess the situation, and then in fiscal Year ‘18 we
would put in for some monies maybe for some floor work and maybe some roofing or
backboard work and stuff or bleachers as well. So that’s what the Department is
doing at this time point and maybe Mr. Ueoka may have a little more on that, for
inspection.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, but we didn’t do a formal inspection with respect to
structural integrity or anything of that sort?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Not to my knowledge

--

COUI\JCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --from the Department standpoint.
COUNCILMEM3ER WHITE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mr. Ueoka?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I guess, we’ve controlled it for I don’t know how many of the
last years. When it, there was fire damage, I believe we fixed it, the County, ‘cause we
controlled it so I think we know what we’re getting into in the sense that we’ve
controlled it for the last however many years, but no formal inspection was completed.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, and as I said, I think the fact that the purchase price is very
reasonable, I’m just asking because I think it’s responsible for us to understand what
we’re getting into so. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: It’s a good point. Ms. Cochran, followed by Ms. Balsa.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And along the lines of Mr. White’s questioning,
I, the Page 5 of the appraisal does state building exhibited a few areas of deferred
maintenance, both interior/exterior, consisting of peeling paint on walls and roof,
separating floor panels, broken wood doors, some wood rot, termite and so on. My
question in regards to this area is, being how old it is, is there any lead paint issues or
any asbestos-type issues with the building? ‘Cause it doesn’t state here at all, just
judging for the age of the building itself.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Anyone on the
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: So I’m not sure if that had been looked into or asked
CHAIR GUZMAN: Administration?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --about.
-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Corp. Counsel?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: No?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Members, we have, Mr. Clayton Fuchigarni is here. He is representing the
owners, which is the Maui Federal Credit Union, if you’d like to.. .why don’t you join us
as a resource person as the former, or I guess, the current owners of the property.
And you may, if you have any knowledge of some of the questions that are being
posed, feel free to answer.
MR.

I do not have any knowledge of whether there is any.. ,like
FUCHIGAMI:
Mr. Buenconsejo mentioned, the appraiser did do a formal appraisal on the property
and, you know, there was a valuation exceeding the sales price, but as far as those
specific questions, I do not know whether or not.

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. Well, thank you for being here as a resource. And it’s also
stating that assuming proper care and timely maintenance, there’s about 20 years left
in the structure itself so that’s what appraiser is also stating in the appraisal. Also, I
guess it has a legal non-conformity in regards to parking. So it was never needed to
create any parking stalls, I guess, back in the day or something
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Anyone?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --when this was built

--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Mr. Ueoka?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --originally?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. As far as I know, it might be non-conforming but I don’t
think there was any requirement. I don’t know how old, this gym is really old so.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Nineteen Forty.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Nineteen Forty.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, I don’t think the parking requirements were the same back then. But
I’m not sure. We weren’t aware of any problems and, again, we’ve run this gym for a
long time as a County facility so I think we’ve made due over the years. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. Cochran?

-
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VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah just, yeah, I guess, in current Code standards it would
require 12 stalls but back in the day, that Code didn’t exist so they were maybe a
horse stall or something. But, no, just, because, you know, and I, obviously people do
drive there and park somewhere, somehow. But overall, yeah, very supportive
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --of the measure.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. Balsa?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair, and thank you very much for
having this today and thank you for the opportunity to comment. It was said earlier
that the building is weathered. Well, if it’s anything like me, it was constructed in the
1940s, that’s me. I was born in 1940 and somebody said they predict 20 years left, If
I live that long, I’ll be very happy, I’ll be 95. So this is really an important part of Kula
and I think that’s the point that we wanna keep in mind, folks. You know, this is the
number one priority of Kula Community Association and the reason for that, of
course, is its importance to the community. You know, like one of the testifiers said,
who’s very involved, it’s in use all the time and there is no alternative. And so I think
it’s really important that we grab this property. Another thing that we talked about
when we were talking about this at the Kula Community Association was they were
very concerned that if the County didn’t buy it for this purpose that somebody else
might buy it and use it for something else, which would be totally upsetting to that
tiny little town area of Kula that is so compact and so small. You know, it’s a use that
is compatible. It’s been there, I think, longer than most of the people that live around
there anymore and so Kula Community Association really wanted us to buy it and
keep it and use it for what it is now. So I’d really appreciate the support of my
colleagues. Thank you very much.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. And just to add to Ms. Balsa’s support for this, it’s
not just the Kula community that benefits from that gym because my kids, from
Makawao, played basketball and volleyball there. So the, you know, the use of the
gym extends beyond Kula and it is a critical piece of our County infrastructure so. My
questions earlier shouldn’t, certainly were not aimed at questioning the purchase
because I think it’s, they’re asking a very fair price, it’s below the appraised value and
I think it’s something that we should do.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Yeah, I think the point is well taken that we should’ve done some
type of inspection and maybe there’s still time to do one before first reading and, you
know, I’m more than willing to pass this through and at least try to get some type of
-
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inspection done. But my other concern, and I did relate this to Ms. Sheppard before
the meeting, was the language in the Code regarding Section 3.44, requiring the
Council to approve purchases for property that exceeds 100,000 and in that section it
also requires the Director of Finance to either number one, do an appraisal or number
two, accept an outside appraisal, and so I was wondering whether, you know, just
looking at this appraisal, it’s dated July 26, 2013, so obviously, it was according to
ACM’s letter dated August 9th, it is to the Kula Community Federal Credit Union, so
this is an outside appraisal. So my question is, did the Director of Finance approve or
accept this, not approve, but accept this appraisal? And, if so, is there any kind of
documentation that says, hey the Finance Director has, you know, acknowledges this
appraisal as the one that is going to be used? Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members. So the Code requires that if we accept an
outside appraisal, that our Real Property Tax assessor review that and accept that and
he has reviewed this and accepted this appraisal as appropriate.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So, Members, is that sufficient enough for, the verbal? Any need
for written documentation? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. Ive had many conversations
about this purchase, recently with Mr. Hironaka, and he assured me that the
paperwork and everything was in order, that the appraisal was higher than what we
were about to pay and he was really happy with this. So I don’t know what, you know,
if there’s a technicality here but it seemed like he was very happy.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Let me ask Corp. Counsel. Is it appropriate to just move forward
on the verbal acknowledgment without having any type of documentation that shows
that the Finance Director has, you know, I guess, consented or approved of the
appraisal, or accepted, excuse me?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. There’s not a formal process required and I believe on this
one, as was communicated by Ms. Balsa, I don’t see a problem with it. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
Thank you, Mr. Chair. And as far as the inspection is
concerned, I mean, it’s been our facility or, you know, were leasing it for quite a
number of years so any repairs needed to be done would be on us anyway so
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --it’s one of those things. We’ve been using it for so long, we
should know exactly what’s wrong with it. So I wouldn’t want to spend extra funds
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --on something like that myself ‘cause we’ve already

--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I mean, we use it.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Airight, thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, I agree with Mr. Couch. My question was, had we done
one and, you know, I don’t think it’s anything that should hold up the process. And
I’ll just point out that the assessed value from RPT, from the time the appraisal was
done ‘till now the assessed value has gone up $350,000.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Wow.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So...
CHAIR GUZMAN: It’s a good deal.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: We gotta move.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, we gotta move. Let’s move this. Okay, Members, the Chair will
entertain a motion to recommend adoption of the proposed resolution incorporating
revisions, there are no revisions of this Committee, and any nonsubstantive revisions
and the filing of County Communication 16-22.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Oh, sorry, Chair, so moved.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Moved by Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Cannot. I’m not a

Member.

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Seconded by Ms. Crivello. Any further discussion? Seeing none, all those
in favor say “aye.”
-
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COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
carries.
VOTE:

All those opposed, say “no.”

We have five “ayes,” two excused, motion

AYES:

Chair
Guzman,
Vice-Chair
Cochran,
Coundilmembers Couch, Crivello, and White.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Hokama and Victorino.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPTION
OF
COMMUNICATION.

RESOLUTION

AND

FILING

OF

COUNCILMEM3ER BAlSA: Thank you everybody,
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you.
MR. fUCHIGAMI: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you very much.

EAR-47

EXECUTION OF PARK ASSESSMENT
SUBDiVISION (KIHEI) (CC 16-5)

AGREEMENT

FOR

KAMALANI

CHAIR GUZMAN: Moving on to the next item. I believe this is EAR-47, the Execution of the
Park Assessment Agreement for Kamalani Subdivision in Kihei. The Committee is in
receipt of County Communication 16-5, from the Director of Parks and Recreation,
transmitting a proposed resolution entitled Approving and Authorizing the Execution
of a Park Assessment Agreement for the Kamalani Subdivision, Pursuant to
Section 18.16.320, Maui County Code, and the proposed Park Assessment Agreement.
The purpose of the proposed resolution is to approve the Park Assessment Agreement
whereby the developer, Kamalani Ventures LLC, has agreed to fully satisfy the
conditions of Section 18. 16.320 of the Maui County Code by providing 6.5 acres of
land and improvements for park and playgrounds purposes as a condition of the
-
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subdivision approval for the development of 94.352 acres in North Kihei. We have
here before us the proposed agreement from A&B Properties, Incorporated, to provide
the parks properties as a condition of approval for its proposed subdivision and that’s,
I believe that’s near Mokulele Highway and meets Piilani Highway in Kihei.
I
understand that the developer would be providing two small pocket parks. It’s a half
acre each and I guess it’s going to be privately owned and also will contribute land and
improvements towards the County’s Hale Piilani Park, which abuts the proposed
development. So today we have Mr. Buenconsejo from the Parks Department. Why
don’t you go ahead and do an opening?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, thank you, Chair, Councilmembers. Just a real quick tidbit on
that. A&B was not available to come down today but the Department has met with
A&B regarding the Kamalani Subdivision and with the park agreement and, you know,
as far as what they are proposing, the Parks Department is in conjunction with them.
They will be kind of updating and expanding our current Piilani Park and that’s the
major scope of the park assessment from the park standpoint. The two pocket parks,
I believe, will be a public/private park where public still could go and use the pocket
parks if they chose to; however, not the community center, They’ll be a community
center at the very beginning of Phase I, with the park there, but the community center
will be for homeowners only but the other parks are available to the public from our
discussions.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. 3UENCONSEJO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You said, the community center. What,
I didn’t see that in the agreement. Is that a separate
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? It’ll be for the homeowners. I don’t know if it’s a community
center. It’s more of a
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, it’s not in the agreement, though.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Okay, that I’m not sure if it would be in the agreement or if it’s
supposed to be in there, but they could’ve took it out. This is just in discussion
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --with the phase they were gonna.. .it’s gonna be like a, I wouldn’t call
it a community center, but a little center for the homeowners.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So these two approximately one-acre private pocket parks are
going to be private and the Department prefers that because they won’t have to
maintain that? Is that right?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Yes, for the most part and the size of it is just, you know, it’s
not where you’re going to need playing fields or anything like that so
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --for that point, we rather have the association maintain those areas
and then we’ll take care of the actual park that we can use for playing fields.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Now, the bigger park doesn’t show any playing fields.
Now you’re saying that there’s gonna be some on there?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It just shows open

--

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Open field, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:

--

areas.

MR. BUENCONSEJO: So well design whether it going to be soccer fields or it could fit a,
more of a little league field, baseball field, not a full-size baseball field, but it’ll be just,
majority open field space that we can transform into t-ball or soccer for the younger
youth. It won’t be
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --for high school or anything like that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: ‘Cause it looks kinda small.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that is, as you say, is abutting the Hale Piilani Park on
the, if you look at agreement, it’s on the bottom side of the park, is that right?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes. Itlljoin into the current park that we currently
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And so it’ll have two separate parking areas, the one that’s
existing at Hale Piilani and then the one further north?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Everything seems to be okay and yeah, I like the
concept of the pocket parks as well because, you know, just to spread out the green
area and people, when they go on their walks or whatever, can deal with that. But the
homeowners association is gonna have to pick that up, right, the maintenance of that?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Yes, that’s on their responsibility, as far

--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --as maintenance as well. Yeah, everything from the cutting of grass
and everything else.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: The only thing that we would maintain is the third phase, Piilani Park
extension.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure. Do we have any say if they start letting it go for whatever
reason? Do we have any, are we gonna have any say in that?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Not, I mean, in a sense, that’s their community. I wouldn’t
see why they would let it go but ideally, I mean, I would, yeah, I’m sure we could say
something but
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --it’s definitely, as a homeowner association, I’m sure they’ll be saying
something first if it is not being maintained ‘cause those parks are actually within the
dwellings so, I mean, it’s definitely part of their landscape.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And when does the big one, is that going to be built? Did they
say in what, is it going to be built with the 170 units that are going in right away?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Like all development, our park is built last and that’s part of, had a
little discussion, you know, with the planning stages, you know, it’s basically... Maui
Lani’s a great example. We’re getting our park turned over, first phase of it, after
12 years. So those are things that, you know, we would like to see our park not wait
for the completion of a project but that’s a deeper issue that involves, you know, a lot
more departments when it comes to that as far as planning and everything else. But
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to answer your question, no, it won’t be built in the first phase. That park, of Piilani,
the park, per Se, not the pocket parks, will be upon completion of their third phase.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Of their third phase?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Third phase, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do we have any say in that or? I guess we probably should\re
had that.
CHAIR GUZMAN: I think it’s at Planning right? That’s your Committee.
COUNCILMEM3ER COUCH: I would... no, I would think it would have been at change of
zoning time. I don’t know
--

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --do we have the ability to change

--

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
COUNCILMEM3ER COUCH: --this agreement at all?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So to my understanding of it, you know, it’s 500 square feet per unit,
with the first 3 units being exempt. So as you build out your project, you really don’t
have the 6 acres completed yet until you\ie accomplished the whole housing project of
the 500 square feet per unit. And that’s been kind of that trigger where, for example,
again, I’ll bring up Maui Lani. It’s, they had to build x-amount of hundreds of homes
Now there’s a second phase
for, to release the 12 acres that are finally being
that they still owe, but they’re not, it’s not owed until they finish up the remainder
units. So there’s just a lot of things that need to be addressed in the future.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Well, you’re
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, Mr. Guzman, can we get a letter to, I’m assuming it’s going
to be to Ms. Cochran’s Committee because it’s in subdivision
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --or when that gets taken care of, I think? But can we get a
letter to say, can we fix that ‘cause it’s similar to the affordable housing. I don’t
want--not that A&B’s going to do this--but potentially other developers go, oh, we’re
done now, we only have a
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Right, right.
-

35

-

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENERGY, AGRICULTURE,
AND RECREATION COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
February 16, 2016

COUNCILMEM3ER COUCH: —-couple left and away and don’t do the park or we have the
park 12 or 20 years later. Can we do something about consecutive or prior to
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --language?
CHAIR GUZMAN: We’ll send a letter to
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Some sort of letter to the Chair and he can assign it to
whatever committee that is appropriate.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, we’ll transmit

--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --some correspondence. Yeah, I just was in Portland and, you know, they
did their landscape architecture first, before the actual infrastructure, which is pretty
cool. So infrastructure had to build around landscape architecture. So this is kinda
what you’re talking about.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
CHAIR GUZMAN: But is there any other questions? Ms. Cochran?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And, yeah, thank you, Mr. Couch. That’s, I
think, a good point. And also I know there’s examples out there where the parks
actually never ended up being built. I mean, years go by and maybe that was the
case, they just didn’t finish off all those intended units and they sort of walked away
and community lost out. So, be nice to follow up with those or put a, you know, put a
protective measure in there to make sure that they do get built out and given to the
proper district.
And just, I guess, a clarification point, though, in all the
documentation, it states Pulehunui, Kihei, Wailuku, Maui, Hawaii. Is that in reference
to the moku that it’s in, the Kihei-Wailuku verbiage that’s written in all of the resos
and exhibits and what-have-you? Just
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Corporation Counsel or
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --wondering that

--

--

CHAIR GUZMAN: --Parks?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --the Kihei-Wailuku wording?

-
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? I would have to get back to you on that one. I’m

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --not too sure. We can research that.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Is there a significance on that?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: No, just wondering if, and I’m thinking maybe because it’s the
moku instead of, now we call Wailuku and Kihei are, its own areas, but I don’t know.
That was just a clarification question because it’s in all of our resos and all of our
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --legal documentation here. Maybe just a follow-up, Chair? It may
not, you know, make or break a deal or anything, I’m just, for clarification
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Maybe we could get a

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --sake.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --clarification letter

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --and before first reading so that we can, if.. ,let me ask the Corporation
Counsels, did you have an opportunity to review the agreement?
MS. SHEPPARD: Yes, I did.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, Ms. Sheppard, is it sufficient in terms of legal form and anything,
red herring sticking out that you could see or anything like that?
MS. SHEPPARD: Yes, it is. It’s compliant and, in fact, we went back and forth with A&B a
few times on format to make sure that it was something that was easy to read, user
friendly and followed the Code. So I accept it as it is.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, very good. So

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --any further questions, Ms.

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah.

-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: --Cochran?
Yes.
And in the Park Assessment requirements, Item 1(A),
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN:
developer has reserved the right to add an annex, additional land in the vicinity of the
land, to the development. What does that mean, right to add an annex, additional
land in the vicinity?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Good point.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: What does that term mean? What does
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. Sheppard? Or

--

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: --Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So in the discussion with A&B and talking story, you know, for to
have a great relationship with A&B as far as, you know we’d asked the.. .that was a
potential maintenance shed for that new six acres on the top that, you know, they
could put something up there possibly. It’s, but I can definitely confirm that, but I
believe that was in the discussion, if they could put something up for us for our
maintenance, putting our mowers and everything in that annex, But, again, I can also
confirm that as well, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: So, meaning that they potentially will give more than just the
6.22 acres? Is that what this is
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? It wouldn’t necessarily be more, just on top of that, the areas
that we wouldn’t be using, say for playing fields, you know, always to the offset of the
fields. We could put something there, put a placement on there, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Oh, okay. So it’s, I guess, removing park usage per se, like it’s not
for the shed or whatever
--

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah, would be

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --they feeling they might need, the maintenance
MR. BUENCONSEJO:
acreage.

--part of the acreage that’s already being given, yeah, on top of that

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. And then on Item C, in regards to, those are the pocket
parks and privately owned/maintained by developer or its successors. That is, we’re
assuming, the HOAs of this development, would be, have the responsibility there?
-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. Sheppard?
MS. SHEPPARD: Yes, that would be the cognizant homeowners associations.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay, and, Chair, I’m sorry, I think I missed the discussion in
Committee initially that accepted this project. Was there like a dollar amount that
perhaps was going to be added to the price ranges of these units because of the cost to
Was that ever
manage these privately owned parks within this development?
discussed? ‘Cause I know sometimes when you start adding up the numbers
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah,
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --it ends of not being so affordable anymore.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: But, okay
CHAIR GUZMAN: No, well that’s a good question? Did you recall, Ms. Sheppard or
MS. SHEPPARD: This is being developed by the developer out of

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Right.
MS. SHEPPARD: --developer’s costs, it’s not going to be passed on to the cost of the
affordable housing units is my understanding ‘cause it would change the equation of
what is all required.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah, okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN:
But I was thinking more along the lines of the ongoing
maintenance. There’s going to be, yeah, the HOA, AOA, or whatever they’re called, will
have to pick up the expense throughout the years.
CHAIR GUZMAN: For the pocket parks?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah, for the pocket parks. So that was just... and the, I guess, the
other acreage for park, which is, I guess, neighboring our existing County park, the
neighborhood park?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, 6.5 acres.

-
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VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: And that’s going to be sort of added and blended into that, our
current County park and then dedicated to us, the County, to manage and take care
oP
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, why don’t you go through that

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Is that kinda the idea?
CHAIR GUZMAN: --mister. Director?
.

.

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah, so basically it’ll tie into what we currently have, the Piilani
Village, Piilani Subdivision Park that’s currently there. It’s been there for years now.
And so the tie in from the drawings I’ve seen is just tying in with the new Kamalani
Subdivision Park and it’ll kinda blend into the current park. And at that point, yeah,
we would take ownership of that new six acres or so. We already have ownership of
the current park. It’s just once that is complete, then, yeah, we would do the whole
transfer of that new park space with our current park space.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Is that called Hale Piilani Park, is that what it is?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah, I believe it is, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: And, if so, I believe when we were doing the site inspection for
Kaiwahine, we went to see this park and it was not in like the best condition.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: It’s one of our
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Is the developer going to help improve, ‘cause I don’t think there’s
restrooms or any type of amenities like that there?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So, no, yeah, that park is definitely, it’s, definitely needs some TLC,
for sure. And, again, the intent of the Department, again, not just waiting for that
development to come up and get the new park, but we do have that on our schedule
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --to actually resod that and returf that as well to get that thing up and
running. I want to say there’s a basketball courts
--

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: There is.

-
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: --there as well. Yeah, so

--

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Playground
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --even looking into that and kinda rehabbing that whole park and,
you know, bringing it to where it should be.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Oh, okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Any further questions?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah, and, Chair, I know West Maui has a lot of park assessments
and not to take away from poor Mr. Couch’s district of park assessments, but, Chair, I
just wanted to put it on record that, you know, the area where this is being proposed,
currently there’s a huge population in this community looking into their
environmental health, you know, and tests being done upon abutting areas that are
using heavy pesticides, continual wind drift and what-have-you. So being this project
abutting that type of practice next door, you know, I just wanted to bring that to the
forefront because I’ve been having a lot of communication with the community stating
their, yeah, sort of, you know, their concerns basically and having parks where
children and animals and, you know, families will be playing upon and downwind
from and things of that nature. There’s open litigation currently in regards to
pesticides in the Paia homes and things because of their proximity to existing
agriculture fields and what-have-you. So I just wanted to bring that up and, again,
not to take away, I understand the need but also I understand the need for us to
protect the community and making sure that we’re not putting anybody in danger and
what-have-you. But this case will be heard by the end of the year and there will be a
clear, you know point to it. And so, was just wondering on our behalf, to be safe for
our community, to kinda put on hold for the moment but, again, not to take away
from, you know, a community need, which is our parks and recreation for our
families. In that respect, Chair, I just wanted to point that out being that it’s been,
you know, heavy on my mind but also a lot of people, almost half of the population of
this County so just wanted to put that on record at this time.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Ms. Cochran. Any further questions from the Members?
Seeing none, so at this time the Chair is going to entertain a motion to recommend
adoption of the proposed resolution, incorporating any nonsubstantive revisions and
the filing of County Communication 16-5.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Moved by Mr. Couch.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Second.
Any further discussion?

CHAIR GUZMAN: Seconded by Ms. Cochran,
those in favor say “aye.”

Seeing none, all

COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR GUZMAN: All those opposed, say “no.” Five “ayes,” two excused, motion carries.
VOTE:

AYES:

Cochran,
Vice-Chair
Guzman,
Chair
Councilmembers Couch, Crivello, and White.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Hokama and Victorino.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPTION
OF
COMMUNICATION.

RESOLUTION

AND

FILING

OF

CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Members.

EAR-35

OCEAN RECREATIONAL ACTIVITY FUND (MISC)

CHAIR GUZMAN: Moving on to the next item on the agenda, EAR-35. This is Ocean
Recreational Activity Fund. This actually was referred to us by the Budget Committee
to evaluate strategies that enable the fund to be self-sufficient in supporting
enforcement of the Commercial Recreational Activity Permits. The Committee is in
receipt of Miscellaneous Communication dated May 28, 2015, from the County Clerk,
transmitting the matter relating to the Ocean Recreational Activity Fund. Members,
Section 13.04.340 of the Maui County Code establishes the Ocean Recreational
Activity Fund and provides that fees collected for ocean commercial recreational
activity in or on the County property are to be put into the Fund and used to
implement the regulation of that activity under Article X of the, including salaries,
-
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purchases of equipment and maintenance of the County property. As you know, this
Committee just completed the extensive review of the proposed bill that would repeal
Chapter 13.04 and replace it with a new chapter, 13.04A, overhauling the regulations
concerning ocean recreational activity, among other things. However, the section
establishing the Ocean Recreational Activity Fund was carried forward in the proposed
bill without any changes. We anticipate the Committee’s recommendation in that
regarding, before the Council, before we meet for our Budget meetings in
March 4, 2016.
So today, the purpose of this is basically to assist the Budget
Committee and we will discuss certain ways to get this fund self-sufficient. And so
why don’t we go ahead and start analyzing what’s going on with this activity fund, this
Ocean Recreational Activity Fund, what’s the status of it, what are some ideas or
improvements we can start thinking about before Budget? The floor is yours,
Mr. Director.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Thank you, Chair, Councilmembers. As, there was a sheet passed
out, just a real general Ocean Recreational Activity Fund, kinda gave you the
numbers. Did you guys receive that?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: No, not yet.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So, it’s passing out now. It’s being passed out. Those numbers will
identify, as far as our year-to-date totals from the actual CORA fund, which is in the
upwards of $400,000 that we currently have in that CORA index. The biggest thing
from the Department’s standpoint is, you know, CORA’s been one of those things that
has been kinda washed under the Parks’ umbrella and with the current changes in,
you know, the way it’s been handled is bringing that back to the forefront. There’s a
lot of areas that need improvements and it’s a great opportunity for our instructors
and our community to have this program going. I think this, today, was just more or
less to open the dialogue. There’s a lot of ways that we can go with the route of CORA
and get the revenues that other counties are getting in different ways. It’s just, again,
it’s been going on for a decade now. So, you know, there’s a lot of resistance in certain
areas but there’s a lot of improvements that do need, that need to be done, as well as,
you know, finding ways that, you know, where we want to be self-sustainable with the
monies that we do generate, where we want to see it be put back into. So, again, just
kinda wanna throw that out there. Where do we see, where do we wanna see this
heading to from a standpoint of revenue generating and bringing that back into the
CORA Fund and being self-sustainable in that sense.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Members, any specific questions? I know it was kind of a general
statement but I’m sure the Director can go into more of the what is working and what
are the main concerns at this point. Mr. Couch?
-

43

-

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENERGY, AGRICULTURE,
AND RECREATION COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
February 16, 2016

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I notice you have Professional Services
here, it’s over 109,000 about 3 years ago, 4 years ago, and it’s gone down to 6,000 this
year. What, was that the security?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: No. Chair, that was the actual, original Kanaha Master Plan that was
never completed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Back in 2013-20 14. It was a lot, I mean, it was a chunk of change. It
was a pretty big, substantial thing but the survey was never fully executed or
completed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, that opened a big door. What
MR. BUENCONSEJO: I, that’s something that I, still looking into, as, where as far as what,
where it failed through the Administration, I, we’re still looking into as far as where
was the big disconnect.
COUNCILMEM3ER COUCH: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: But, yeah, so that was, and I believe, kind of addresses real briefly in
the past, you know, as far as recreating that, getting that Kanaha Master Plan back up
and running again, not necessarily strictly for CORA but this was the CORA study and
that, with that whole EA discussion that we had. The EA was never done as well. It
was just a CORA study of where the spot should be. It was, that was that thick book
that was done back then. So, yeah, so, sorry, it wasn’t a true Kanaha Master
Planning, that was our CORA study...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, you know, Mr. Chair, I think we do need to do some sort
of study on there and once we get that study done, then we need to really seriously
consider upping those amounts because we should be getting revenue for the Park
Rangers.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It should pay for all the Park Rangers and any, you know,
necessary services there, which means, you know, that opens the door to how are we
going to give out those permits. You know, is it going to be an RFP concession? I
mean, I don’t know if this is the meeting for that but I think that needs to be talked
-

44

-

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENERGY, AGRICULTURE,
AND RECREATION COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
February 16, 2016

about sooner rather than later to beef up these funds ‘cause they do need to pay for
the Park Rangers, that was the whole idea with the Park Ranger program. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Any further questions? Ms. Cochran?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And the actual code where it states, any fees
collected, where, are those fees from the permittees, permittee fee? Is that the initial
monies that were gotten to put in to start this fund in the beginning?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes, so that was, I believe it was that $500 for years and just last year
is when it came up to 1,000, I wanna say, for the first 2, and then 500 therefore or any
other ones after 2, if I’m not mistaken. So, yeah, that was, that’s where the pot got
started, was from all the fees that were collected for all the permits that are issued.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. And currently we have, where’s the current, oh, 422,000?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes.
And, Chair, you wanted to see how we can improve the

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
utilization of the monies?

CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes. I guess the question to the Director is, with the monies that’s being
currently collected, you know, what exactly are we specifically using them for? Oh, I
see here, Operations portion. You mentioned that there are, I guess, issues or points
that could be improved. Do you have an idea of where to start those improvements?
MR. 3UENCONSEJO:
enforcement.

Chair?

Yes,

So, I mean, the biggest improvement right now is

CHAIR GUZMAN: Enforcement?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: You know, we need to have enforcement. And, you know, we have
Park Rangers, but, again, those are things that I think, you know, we need to either
increase our Park Rangers or give ‘em more authority. You know, again, right now,
, you know.
So, kinda getting
they’re not a true enforcement, they’re a security
that back up to par and, you know, going to our beach parks and, again, getting them
the tools that they need to be successful. And I think for the first time, you know, in a
year now, we finally got a full staff so we’re on our way, we are getting to that progress
but, you know, I’m sure. .(inaudible).
the CORA vendors who are paying these fees
and, you know, as far as the ones who aren’t CORA vendors and are using the
facilities, you know, we need to get out there. But, again, we still only have, I believe
it’s five Park Rangers. So with all the beach parks that we do have, the timeframes
.

.

-

.
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that they’re going, you know, it’s definitely, we still have a little shortage on that. And
so if we do get to a point where we start reanalyzing the CORA fee structure, I feel that
with that income, we should be able to sufficient, more manpower, as well as, you
know, vehicles and whatever they need, the tools that they need to be successful as
well as upgrading the facilities. So those CORA facilities that are being heavily used
that we know of, you know, Kalama Park’s a big one, Kanaha Beach Park’s another
huge one and then Kamehameha Ike in Lahaina. Those are your three probably
highest revenue-generating beach parks. And you look at Kamehameha Ike, there’s
not even a restroom facility for that area. So things like that where we can generate
revenue for that to go ahead and upgrade our facilities in those CORA park, using
specific CORA monies
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --for the specific CORA park. You know, and then, so those are the
options that we kinda see moving forth. And, again, possibly fine tuning the CORA
program with the CORA permittees, you know, some of them have eight or nine
permits but only use two. You know, so bringing that back out ‘cause that’s revenue
that would be, we could use for other areas as well. So it’s definitely a discussion
that, it needs to be addressed and is not going to happen overnight
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --but just to start that ball.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, this is a good start. At least we have some data to work with and I
guess what I would be asking from the Director is as you start to develop the CORA
section of the chapter, I know that that wasn’t really drafted out, on the most recent
redrafts of the new chapter, so as you begin to do that I would hope that, you know,
this activity fund would be incorporated in as part of the, you know, generating its
own self-sufficiency. So, any other questions, Members, on this item? So I’m going to,
at this time, defer this matter. That will be off my table and we’ve at least discussed it
as a referral from the Budget Committee. And so when it does come up, we can say
we spoke about it. Okay, without objections, Members, I will defer that matter.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you.

-
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EAR-32

WAIEHU MUNICIPAL GOLF COURSE RATES AND REVENUES (MISC)

CHAIR GUZMAN: Moving on to the next item that was deferred to, referred to us by the
Budget Committee, asking us to evaluate seasonal and annual rates for the Waiehu
Municipal Golf Course and revenues for the golf cart rentals, Thank you, Budget
Committee. The Committee is in receipt of a Miscellaneous Communication dated
May 28, 2015, from the County Clerk, transmitting the matter relating to the Waiehu
Municipal Golf Course rates and revenues. Also the Budget Committee’s minutes of
April 2nd indicate the Committee’s concerns at that time was that the golf course was
“losing money.” The Director is here today and I believe they’ve also brought the
superintendent, Mr. Todd Allen, whom I’ve had a great opportunity to have met and
was able to get a tour of the facilities and
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: All 18 holes.
CHAIR GUZMAN: All 18 holes. We were not playing. We were actually doing an inspection.
But he’s here and I’d like to have him join us on the floor as well as, I guess, the, Karla
Peters, the Parks Maintenance Supervisor or Superintendent of Parks and Recreation.
So why don’t we go ahead and begin with the revenues and then we will, after the
revenues, look into the current golf course rates. I know that we had, as the Budget
Committee had changed those rates and what are, are there any after effect or any
consequences to that or is it working out? What is the status?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So in front of you, just passed out right now, is the revenue sheet. I
believe it’s for three years, ‘13, ‘14 and ‘15. You know, since.. .in general, golf in
general, has been going down across the board, across any resort course and anything
else, but as you can see with the revenue, if you’re looking at it, the revenue is
showing an increase from the rounds played, for the revenue
and that was due
to the increase in the rate fees from this past fiscal year. But take into consideration
our count is down substantially, rounds of golf. So that’s that Catch 22 from any
business standpoint is, you know, do we want to capture, capturing the rounds if we
were to go back to our normal rounds of golf and with the increase, our revenue would
be off the charts. But that’s the thing where we’re trying fight together, to pull
together and see what can we do differently and really look at where we’re finding
some decreases in and how can we better that. And that’s where we’re kinda looking
at today and moving forward with that. There’s some options that, you know, Todd
Allen brings to the table from Arizona that he’s been with the golf courses, and
together we’ve come up with some ideas that, you know, may work but giving us the,
kind of looking into it and how can we move forward with some of the new programs
that we can bring to the golf course for those slow peak times, and, again, looking at
the fee structure, if we need to decrease or increase. With current fee rounds in other
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resort courses right now, currently our twilight rate or our resident rate... oh, I’m
sorry, our visitor rate, you can play a course basically, except for Kaanapali and
Kapalua, cheaper than you can at Waiehu. So those are the things that we need to
look at when it comes to fee structures for twilight times or special times during the
day. At that, I’ll leave it up to the Council if they have any questions for myself or Mr.
Todd Allen.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Why don’t we get some, a statement from Mr. Allen on some of the
challenges that you’re facing and what are some of your ideas about the revenue?
MR. ALLEN: Yes, thank you. Currently we are, from all the data that I’ve seen and looked
at, we’re losing about 2,000 to 2,500 rounds a year. So I would like to promote a more
intensive junior golf program and possibly reach out to some of the younger residents
and encourage them to play golf. We’re also looking at having the flexibility to create
You know, November, December,
some specials during our down peak times.
February,
March,
no
problem,
we
have
a lot of tourists and we make a
January,
decent amount of money. But, then as the Summer progresses, we start losing some
of that revenue and there is a possibility that we could do some different things, run
some tournaments, you know, all sorts of stuff, as well as reach out to the community
as the hotels and tourists, tour vans and try to shuttle them over.
CHAIR GUZMAN: So is there, the Director did mention that some of our rates, I believe he
said the twilight rates are more expensive than the private courses going on right now.
Is that my understanding?
MR. ALLEN: Our visitor rate right now, we are in competition directly with the neighboring
golf courses. So there is the, not necessarily the nine-hole rate but the visitor rate and
the twilight rate, we are in comparison to Maui Lani and Maui Nui and Kahili, as well
as Maui Country Club. So I think that could possibly be where we’re losing some of
our rounds. Over the last three years is that they’re becoming more competitive with
us and capturing some of that.
CHAIR GUZMAN: It’s $20, right, for, does, how much do we charging our visitors, I forgot?
MR. ALLEN: We have 55

--

CHAIR GUZMAN: fifty-five, okay.
MR. ALLEN: --on the weekends and 40

--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, that’s
MR. ALLEN: --twilight.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah.
-
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MR. ALLEN: And then on the weekdays.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Those are the same, almost the same prices as the private courses.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mister
MR. BUENCONSEJO: That’s just your green fees, you still gotta pay $20 for your cart.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh, right.
MR. 3UENCONSEJO: So you’re at 75.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, you’re at... oh, gosh, yeah, they’re right up
MR. ALLEN: The carts are

--

--

CHAIR GUZMAN: --with the private

--

MR. ALLEN: --leased out, yes.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --courses, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know, for the last three or four
Budget sessions, been talking about seeing if we can give them the opportunity to
have flexible rates during the off times when this situation, because when the
competition lowers their rates we gotta lower ours at the same time.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So I think that’s part of why this came
see if we can put in any provisions in the Budget Code for rates.
that they can charge but be very careful, you know, just so, so
eh, Mr. Guzman’s coming so he gets the lowest rate no matter
kind of thing.

up is that we need to
If we give em a range
it can’t be, you know,
what, you know, that

CHAIR GUZMAN: Don’t say that to us.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Or Ms. Crivello, whatever. It, just so they can’t
CHAIR GUZMAN: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --you know, manipulate those rates. Just say, look, if the
competition is now down at 45, which includes cart, then we gotta make our rate to
equal that or be just slightly below. So we have to figure out what the low rate, and
we’re gonna need your help there for Budget at least, if the Committee is amendable to
that, is to have what’s the lowest rate you think you’d need to charge and then what’s
the highest rate you need to charge, and then we put in some language to say, you
know, you charge everybody in that category that rate. You can’t pick and choose
kind of thing, for that day or for that week or however you want to do it. I don’t know
if the other Members are amendable to that but I think we’re gonna need something
like that
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --to make it more competitive.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Why don’t we ask, as a Committee, if Mr. Allen and the Director could put
together their proposal. I know that when we did the rates, we were kinda, you know,
shooting from the hip and I was quite concerned on the junior rates when it came out.
I know some of the parents have been calling me hen it initially went out and said
that they had to pay $20 on the weekends but yet $10 on the weekdays if they paid
‘em a monthly fee. And so I was like, whoa, wow, it was quite confusing and maybe
you guys can probably put together some proposals that you could send to our
Committee and before Budget so that we can at least present to the Budget Committee
some of those concerns and at least some rates that are workable for you folks there at
the course. Mr. White, any comments?
COUNCILMEM3ER WHITE: No, I agree with the sentiment because we have been, I think
we’ve been ready to move on flexible rates so I don’t remember what the humbug was
with it.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, why don’t you

--

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: But it makes no
CHAIR GUZMAN: --since we have
COUNCILMENIBER WHITE: Yeah, it makes no sense for us to be putting ourselves in a
non-competitive situation with
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --the rest of the golf courses.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah. So if you folks could at least give us some recommendations, we
will move forward on that. How is the maintenance going on over there, are the greens
and the fairways getting into shape?
MR. ALLEN: Yes, thank you. On a positive note, with the decrease in rounds and an actual
increase in revenue, it’s given us a little more time to, from an agronomic standpoint,
to improve the golf course overall. There’s still quite a bit that we can do to improve
upon the playing conditions, specifically the greens and maybe some of the bunkers.
We still have an extensive weed control program ahead of us. That’s going to be
ongoing for several years, just based on past history. So, you know, I do have a lot of
things that I would like to present as a, you know, as a Parks Department in a whole,
what we want to make changes on and see if we can get the Council to move in that
direction.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Why don’t you.. .1 look, I guess this Committee will look forward to
any recommendations before Budget so that we can, you know, pass that along when
Budget, when Mr. Hokama asks us whether we actually reviewed this subject matter.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, also just for the record, just for everybody to know, our
maintenance, as far as the facility itself, the structure itself, from the starters to the
Pro Shop, the restaurant, we do have some major facility needs when it comes to, as
well as even our sewer system. So there’s definitely some money that’s gonna need to
be spent to get those facilities up to par. I don’t think there was anything done since it
was
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: -under heavy use. So just a little heads up on that as well, yeah.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. I notice that you had the nets up.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes.
CHAIR GUZMAN: The nets are up.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So, yes, thankfully, so our driving range are up. We got that up for
the street side, so left side of the nets. We’re still working on the right side, to get
those nets up as well but it looks beautiful right now.
CHAIR GUZMAN: That’s good. I was kinda concerned about that for a while, on the street
side. But anyways, the Department will be, you’ll be okay with putting something
together for this Committee? Okay, thank you. Members, without any objections, I’d
like to defer this matter.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
-
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ACTION:

DEFER.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, thank you. That will actually conclude our items on today’s agenda.
Thank you very much, Members, for sticking in there and hanging in there and for the
very good discussions. So meeting adjourned.
(gavel).
ADJOURN:

4:02 p.m.
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